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3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report on 3i EFV GP Ltd (the “Company”) with the financial statements for
the year to 31 March 2017.

Background and general information

The Company was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as a company under the
Companies Act 2006. The registered office of the Company is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is to act as General Partner of 3i Europartners Va LP and 3i
Europartners Vb LP {the “Limited Partnerships”).

Development

There have been no changes in the activity of the Company in the year and the Directors do not foresee
any future changes.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed in note 11 to the
financial statements. The Directors do not believe that the Company is significantly exposed to the
following risks:

» Capital Management
o  Credit risk

« Liquidity risk

«  Market risk

Results and dividends
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year after tax amounted to €165,076 (2016: €678,834).

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the year (2016: nil). An interirn dividend of €440,000
was declared and paid during the year (2016; €650,000).

Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no material events since the balance sheet date.

Directors

The following served as Directors throughout the year and to the date of this report except where
otherwise indicated:

Ben Loomes (resigned on 27/01/2017)
Jasi Halai

Jonathan Murphy

Kevin Dunn

Matt Shelley



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Directors’ report

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis for preparing the financial statements.

Exemption from presenting a Strategic Report

The Directors have taken the exemption available under Section 4148 of the Companies Act 2006 in
not presenting a Strategic Report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Pursuant to s418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that: (a) so far as they
are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware; and {b) they have
taken all steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

In accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution proposing the reappointment
of Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the Company will be put to the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Auditor

Ermnst & Young LLP remains in office as auditor of the Company in accordance with section 487(2) of
the Companies Act 2006.

By Order of the Board

Jasi Haiai
Director

Registered Office:
16 Palace Strest
London

SWH1E 54D

'Y August 2017



3i EFV GP Lid No. 5840692

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurocpean Union. Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8. Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

We have audited the financial statements of 3i EFV GP Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in equity, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the Accounting policies A to K and the related notes
1 to 11. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable faw
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the apinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. Qur responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasconableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the Annual report and accounts to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its profit
for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financiai

staternents are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
» the Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20086 required
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statemenis are not in agreement with the accounting records and return; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received alt the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption from the

requirement to prepare a Strategic Report.

ErunsT & Lovup LLP

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Londorn

[ §7 August 2017



3i EFV GP Ltd

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year to 31 March 2017

No. 56840692

Notes 2017 2016
€ €
Revenue 1 8,105,716 8,822,066
Operating expenses 2 (7,700,431) (8,381,072)
Operating Profit 405,285 440,994
Net interest expense (1,240) (1,129)
Profit before tax 404,045 439,865
Income taxes 4 (238,969) 238,969
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 165,076 678,834
All itemns in the above statement are derived from continuing operations.
Statement of changes in equity
for the year to 31 March 2017
Notes Issued Retained Total equity
capital earnings
€ € €
Balance at 1 April 2015 1 654,747 654,748
Profit for the year - 678,834 678,834
Dividend declared and paid 5 - {650,000} (650,000)
Total equity at 31 March 2016 1 683,581 683,582
Balance at 1 April 2016 1 683,581 683,582
Profit for the year - 165,076 165,076
Dividend declared and paid - (440,000) (440,000)
Total equity at 31 March 2017 1 408,657 408,658

The accounting policies on page 9 tc 10 and the notes on pages 11 to 16 form an integral part of these

financial statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2017

No. 5840692

Notes 2017 2016
€ €

Assets
Non-current assets
Deferred tax 4 - 238,969 =
Total non-current assets - 238,969
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 458,533 445,925
Receivables 6 - 24038 *
Total current assets 458,533 470,863
Total assets 458,533 709,832
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 7 (49,875) (26,250)
Total liabilities (49,875) (26,250)
Net assets 408,658 683,582
Equity
Issued capitat 8 1 1
Retained earnings 408,657 683,581
Total equity 408,658 683,582

* Deferred tax asset has been re-presented for 2016 from receivables in current assets to non-current

assets.

The accounting policies on page 9 to 10 and the notes on pages 11 to 16 form an integrai part of these

financial statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

Jasi Halai

Director

1\flaQ’7&)l?‘



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

August 2017

Statement of cash flows

for the year to 31 March 2017

Notes 2017 2016
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue collected 8,079,466 8,848,316
Operating expenses paid (7,625,618) (8,406,010)
Bank interest charged (1,240) {1,129)
Net cash flow from operating activities 452,608 441177
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid 5 {440,000) (650,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities (440,000) {650,000)
Net cash flow 12,608 (208,823)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 445 925 654,748
Closing cash and cash equivalents 458,533 445,925

The accounting policies on page 9 to 10 and the notes on pages 11 to 16 form an integral part of these
financial statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU,
and in accordance and compliance with the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied te financial statements
with periods commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IAS7  Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows) 1 January 2017
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The impact of future standards and amendments on the financial statements is being assessed by the
Company. The Company does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 wili have a material
impact on its results.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

B Basis of preparation These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
in accordance with and in compliance with the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements are
presented in euros, the functional currency of the Company, being the currency in which it operates and
generates revenue and incurs expenses.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

D Revenue recognition Revenue comprises of priority profit share from the Limited Partnerships.
and is recognised as services are provided and it is probable that amounts will be repaid.

E Operating expenses Operating expenses are charged to the Statement of comprehensive
income on an accruals basis.

F Financial instruments Financial instruments are made up of payables, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. The Directors consider that the fair value of payables and receivables approximate
their carrying value. The Directors do not believe that the Company is exposed to significant credit risk,
liquidity risk, currency risk or market rate risk and has not taken any specific actions to mitigate these
financial risks. There are no other financial instruments.

G Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position
comprise cash at bank.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Accounting policies

H Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy are stated
at their cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each Statement of financial position date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated based on expected discounted future cash flows. Any change in the
level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of comprehensive income and any changes
in the level of impairment are recognised directly in the Statement of comprehensive income

| Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated
at fair value based on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services
received up to the Statement of financial position date.

J Income taxes Income taxes represent the sum of the tax currently payable, and deferred tax. Tax
is charged or credited in the Statement of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. This may differ from the profit
included in the Statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit (‘temporary differences’), and is accounted for using the Statement of
financial position lizbility method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Statement of financial position date.

K Dividends Dividends are recognised through equity in the period in which they are declared.

10



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 584069

Notes to financial statements

1 Revenue

2017 2016

€ €

Priority profit share 8,105,716 8,822,066

8,105,716 8,822,066

2 Operating expenses

2017 2016
€ €
Management fees 7,700,430 8,380,963
Bank charges 1 108
7,700,431 8,381,072

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €4,914 (2016; €5,800) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow
subsidiary.

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are also Directors of fellow subsidiaries and receive remuneration from
3i plc. The table below shows the total emoluments received by the Directors from the fellow subsidiary.

2017 2016

€ €

Salaries and benefits 1,701,909 1,634,428
Bonuses 488,403 871,061
Compensation for loss of office 652,644 -
Share based payments 2,942,283 857,273
5,785,239 3,362,762

Emoluments, including share based payments, attributable to the highest paid Director were €3,475,948
(2016: €1,290,389).

The Directors do not receive any emoluments from the Company and do not believe it is practicable to
apportion the above amounts to their services as Directors of the Company. The Directors’ services {o
the Company do not occupy a significant amount of their time.

11



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Notes to financial statements

3 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors (2016: €nil) of the Company accrued retirement benefits under the 3i Group Pension Plan,
a defined benefit contributory scheme.

The Company's contribution to pension schemes on behalf of Directors was €nil for the year ta 31 March
2017 (2016: €nil}.

The Directors are granted options in shares of 3i Group plc {"31"). The fair value for the services provided
to the Company by the Directors cannot be reliably estimated and as such no share-based payment
charge has been allocated to the Company.

4 Income taxes

2017 2016
€ €

Current tax
UK corporation tax - -
Deferred income taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,226,494 (238,969)
Adjustment for prior years (935,643) -
Effect of change in tax rate (51,882) -
Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive 238,969 (238,969)

income

Reconciliation of total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive income

The tax for the year is different from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, currently 20% (2016:
20%}, and the differences are explained below:

2017 2016
€ €

Profit before tax 404,045 439,865
Profit before tax multiplied by rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 20% (2016: 20%) 80.809 87,973
Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses claimed as group relief for nil
consideration 956,838 (251,546)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax on ) (87.973)
losses ’
Adjustment for prior years (935,643) -
Derecognition of deferred tax asset 188,847 -
Effect of change in tax rate {51,882) 12,577
;I"‘c::ts:nlgcome_ taxes in the Statement of comprehensive 238,969 (238.969)

12



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Notes to financial statements

4 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income taxes

Statement of

Statement of

financial comprehensive
position income
2017 2017
€ €
Deferred income tax asset

Tax losses 985,765 (746,796)

Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share (985,765) 985,765
Deferred income tax asset - -
Deferred income tax charge in the statement of ) 238,969

comprehensive income

Statement of

Statement of

financial <omprehensive
position income
2016 2016
€ €
Deferred income tax asset

Tax losses 238,969 -

Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share - -
Deferred income tax asset 238,969 -

Deferred income tax charge in the statement of
comprehensive income

At 31 March 2017, 3i EFV GP Limited had tax losses carried forward of €993,934 for which no deferred
tax asset has been recognised. It is considered uncertain that there wiil be suffici ent taxable profits in
the future against which the associated deferred tax assets can be offset and therefore the assets have
not been recognised.

The UK Government announced as part of the Finance (No 2) Act 2015, which received Royal Assent
on 18 November 2015,that the main rate of corporation tax rate would be reduced from 20% to 19%
from 1 April 2017. As part of the Finance Act 20186, a further reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April
2020) was substantively enacted on & September 2016 and received Royal Assent on 15 September
2018. This will affect the rate at which future UK cash tax will be payable and the rate at which deferred
tax assets are expected to reverse. The deferred tax asset at 31 March 2017 has been calculated based
on these rates.

13



3i EFV GP Ltd

Notes to financial statements

5 Dividends paid and declared

No. 5840692

2017 2016
€ €
Declared and paid during the year 440,000 650,000
440,000 650,000
6 Receivables
2017 2016
€ €
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 24,938
- 24,938
7 Payables
2017 2016
€ €
Amounts owed to group undertakings 49,875 26,250
49,875 26,250
8 Issued capital
Authorised .
number of Amount
shares €

Allotted and called up ordinary shares of
£1 each (€1.3786)

1

1

At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016

1

1

14



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Notes to financial statements

9 Parent undertaking and controlling party

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is 3i Heldings plc.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is 3i Group plc (“3i") which is
incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Copies of its group financiai
statements, which include the Company, are available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

10 Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with refated
parties. Those transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in the Directors' report and
note 3. There is no other key management personnel. Each of these categories of related parties and
their impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Iincome from Limited Partnerships

The Limited Partnerships are related parties, being the entities for which the company acts as General
Partner. Total revenue from the Limited Partnerships, including the amount of accrued fees receivable
at the end of the year, is detailed below:

2017 2016
Priority Accrued at Priority Accrued at
Profit Share end of year Profit Share end of year
€ € € €
3i Europartners Va LP 3,844,248 - 4,184,135 -
3i Europartners Vb LP 4,261,468 - 4,637,931 -
8,105,716 - 8,822,066 -

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Management Fees

Total fees paid to 3i pic, which is appointed by the Company to manage the Limited Partnerships,
including the amount of accrued fees due at the end of the year, are detailed below:

2017 2016
Management  Accrued at Management Accrued at
Fees in Year end of year Fees in Year end of year
€ € € €
Management fees to 3i plc 7,700,430 49,875 8,380,963 26,250

Included within receivables is an amount of nil (2016; €24,938) owed by 3i plc in respect of prepaid
management fees. Included within payables is an amount of €49 875 (2016: €26,250) owed to 3i plc in
respect of accrued management fees.

15



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 5840692

Notes to financial statements

11 Financial risk management

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i. 3i sets objectives, policies and processes for managing and
monitoring risk as set out in the Directors' report in the 3i annual report. This note provides further
information on the specific risks faced by the Company.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity and intercompany loans which are due on
demand. There is sufficient capital in the Company to cover liabilities and the Company is free to transfer
capital to the parent company subject to maintaining sufficient reserves to meet statutory obligations.
No significant constraints have been identified in the past and the Company has been able to distribute
profits in a tax-efficient manner.

Credit risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant credit risk as amounts owed by the Company's
debtors are due from related parties as set out in note 10 and are repayable on demand.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed at the Group level as discussed in the Directors’ report in the 3i annual report
and all of the Company’s trade and other payables are repayable within one year.

Market risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant market risk as the Company does not hold fixed or
floating rate loans or liabilities (other than intercompany loans) or investments which are exposed to

market fluctuations.

16
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Registered number: LP11420
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3i Eurgpartners Vb LP LP11420

Strategic report

The Dirgctors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Vo LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deais across ali regions
in which 3i Group ple (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as foilows:

2017 2016

€ €

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year before 496,582,363 310,923,526
carried interest sxpanse

Profit and Totat comprehansive income for the year 325,255,344 268,275,351

Net assets attributable to Pariners 1,006,863623 876,612,718

Total attributable to Partners 1,220,823,823 919,260,833

The results for the ysar and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealisad gain on the value of the remaining invastments of €495,861,917, strong asset cash flows
derived from portfalio income of €1,625,954 and proceeds on realisation of €216,445,306. The Partnership also
distributed €199,699,060 to its Partners.

Future developments
The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager svaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

¢ Market price risk

e Currency rigk

¢ Concentration risk

e Credit risk

o  Liquidity risk

»  Interest rate risk

*  Capital management



3i Europartniers Vb LP LP11420

Strategic report

The Manager has sstablished a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
tha Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnarship’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

Theae objectives aim to imit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and manitor the
management of risk at a Partnarship level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note
10.

For and on behalf of 3i investments pic

Authorised signatory
27" une 2017

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWIE SJD



3i Europartners Vb LP LP11420

Manager's report
The Directors of the Manager present their Manager's report on the Partnarship for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Parinership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The Ganeral Partner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Limited.

The Manager submits its report with the financial statements of the Partnership for the year to 31 March 2017.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has bsen reported as a Qualitying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
{Accourtts) Regulations 2008,

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing othar than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realisa individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners’ interests

A summary of movemants in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concemn

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnarship has sufficient undrawn cormmmitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ansurs that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at lsast 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There ware no material events subsequent to the batance shaeet date.
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Manager’s report

Disclosure of information {o auditor

The Manager confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, therg is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is
unaware; and (b) it has taken all staps it cught to have taken to maks itself aware of any relevant audit inlormation
and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Ernst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnarship in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Pannership Agreement ("LPA") and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i Investmenis plc

Authorised signatory
gaﬁune 2017

Ragistared office:
16 Palace Strest
London

SW1E SJD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the mambers to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The membars have appointed the Manager to prepare the financial stataments.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager’s report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU"} and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless thay are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

+ sslect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state that the financial statemants comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

*  prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continus in business.

The Manager has besn appoirted by the mambers to fulfil the below responsibilities of the membars.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the membaers to snsure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts} Regulations 2008, The
Manager is alsa responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevantion and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requiraments in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s repart

Independent Auditor's report to the members of 3i Europartners Vb LP

We have audited the financial stataments of 3i Europartners Vb LP for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policias A to N and the related notes 1 to 13. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Internationai Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union.

This raport is made solely to the qualitying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Reguiations
2008. Qur audit work has bean undertaken so that we might state to the gualifying partnership’s mambars those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extant
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume rasponsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respaective responsibilities of members and suditor

As explained more fully in the Membars’ responsibilities statement set out on page €, the members are responsible
tor the preparation of the financial statements and for being satistied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibiiity is to audit and exprass an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland}. Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethicai Standards far Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves cbtaining avidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the qualifying
partnership's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the members; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. in
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual report and accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identity any information that is apparently materially
incorrect basad on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit, If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the finangial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

s  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFASs as adopted by the European Union; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as appiied fo
qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships by The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

=  the information given in the Strategic report and the Manager's report for the financial year for which the
financial staternents are prepared is consistant with the financial slatements; and

= the Strategic report and the Manager's report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Auditor’s report
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in light of the knowledge ang understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the Strategic report or Manager’s report.

We have nothing to report in respact of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returng adequate for our audit have not been

raceived from branches not visited by us; or
¢ the financial statements are not in agresment with the accounting records and returns; or

_ = certain disclosures of membaers’ remunaration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not recsived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

é}-;,,g/af ,guwf LLP

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
tfor and on behaif of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

25 June2017
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Statement of comprehensive income
for ihe year ended 31 March 2017
Notes 2017 2016
€ €
Portfolio income 1 2,111,414 10,992,261
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments 2 495,861,917 293,967 671
Fealised profit on the disposal of investments 3 4,059,024 24,540,678
Foreign sxchange on investments 291 18,157
Gross investment return 502,032,643 329,518,767
Priority profit share (4,263,967) {4,651,732)
Operating expanses 4 {620,356) (794,937)
Net interast expanss (41,243) (12,238)
Exchange movemants {138,289} {81,157}
Withholding tax expense {386,419) (13,055,177}
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the
your before carried interest expense 496,582,369 310,923,526
Carried interest expense 8 (171,327.025) {42,648,175)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the
yoar 325,255,344 268,275,351

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operaticns. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the noles on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of thase financial

statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11420

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accountis 1,459 244,589,800 632,021,459 876,612,718
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,684,621 - 4,684,621
Distributions to Partners - {199,699,060) - (199,699,080)
1,459 49,575,361 632,021,459 681,598,279
Profit and Total comprehensive
incoma for the year - . 325,255,344 325,255,344
Closing balance of
Pariners’ accounts 1,459 49,575,361 957,276,803 1,006,853,623
for the year anded 31 March 2016
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
L |  § € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 508,983,670 363,746,108 872,737,237
Drawdowns from Pariners - 1,618,091 - 1,619,091
Distributions to Partners - (266,018,961) - {266,018,961)
1,459 244,589,800 383,746,108 608,337,367
Profit and Tota! comprahensive
income for the year - - 268,275,351 268,275,351
Closing balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 244,589,800 632,021,459 876,612,718

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10
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Statement of tinancial position
as at 31 March 2017
Notes 2017 2016
Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investmeants 5
-~ Quoted investments - 10,529,470
- Unguoted investmenits 1,203,701,162 905,899,632
Total non-current assets 1,203,701,162 916,429,102
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,476,065 2,698,735
Recsivabies 6 - 422,568
Total current assets 17,476,085 3,121,301
Total assets 1,221,177,227 919,550,403
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carriad interest payable 8 (213,975,200) (42,648,175)
Total non-current Uabilities (213,975,200) (42,648,175}
Current liabilities
Payables 7 (348,404) {289,510)
Total current liabliities (348,404) (289,510)
Total liabilitles {214,323,604) (42,937,685)
Nst assets sttributable to Partners 1,006,853,623 876,612,718
Repressnted by:
Capital contributions 1,459 1,459
Loan account 49,575,361 244,539,800
Profit and loss accounts 957,276,803 632,021,459
Net assets atiributable to Partners 1,006,853,623 876,612,718
Carried interest aflocation 218,975,200 42 648,175
Total attributable to Partners 1,220,828,823 919,260,893

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For and og behalf of 3i Investments plc

uthorised signatory
27 June 2017

11
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Statement of cash flows
far the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11420

2017 2016
€ €
Cash Hiow from operating activities
Purchase of investments {3,173,232) {75,710}
Proceeds from investments 216,445,306 262,406,542
Portfolio income received 1,625,954 9,770,726
Bank interest received 12,968 14,238
Bank interest charged (54,211) (27,125)
Priority profit share {4,263,967) (4,651,732)
Operating sxpenses (695.9786) (548,594)
Net cash fiow from operating activities 209,896,842 266,888,345
Cash tiow from financing activities
Capital contribution from Partners - 292
Drawdowns 4,684,621 1,619,091
Cistributions {199,699,060) (266,018,961)
Net cash fiow from financing activities (195,014,439) {264,399,578)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 14,882,403 2,488,767
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,698,735 263,688
Ettect of exchange rate fluctuations (105,073) {53,720)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 17,476,065 2,698,735

The accounting palicies on pagas 13 to 15 and the notas on pages 16 to 25 form an integrai part of these financial

statements.

12
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Aécounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intarnational Accounting Standards Board {"IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership {(Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Gompanies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the foflowing standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IAS 7 Digclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows) 1 January 2017
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 1§ Lesases 1 January 2019

Tha impact of future standards and amendments on the financial statements is being assessed by the Manager.
The Managar does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFAS 15 and IFRS 16 will have a material impact on its results,

8 Basis of preparation The financial statements have been prepared on a going cancern basis and are
presented in euros, the functional currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital
commitments, drawdowns and distributions are denominated.

€ Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial stataments requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and fiabilities, income and axpenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical exparience and other factors that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from othar sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognisaed in the period in which the estimate is revised it the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The mast significant
techniques far estimation are described in the accounting policles below.

The most significant estimatas for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methadotogy for investments and carried interast are disclosed in accounting policies E and
N.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfofio invesiments and providing investmert management services to
investors for the purpose of generating retums in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Invesiments are recognised and de-recognised on a date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment. The
Partnership manages its investments with a view to profiting from the receipt of investment income and capitai
appreciation from changes in the fair value of equity investments.

All investments are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration given and held at this value until it is
appropriate to measure fair value on a difterent basis, applying the International Private Equity and Venture Capital
("IPEV") valuation guidelines.

Quoted investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and subsequently carried in the Statement
of financial position at fair value. Fair value is measured using tha closing bid price at the reporting date where the
invastmant is quoted on an active stock rmarket.

i3
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments (continued)

Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are
subsequently carried in the Statement of financial position at fair value. Fair value is measured using IPEV valuation
guidelines.

Intarest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and inciuded
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of invastment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a tair vaiue reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fulty provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value.

Realissd and unrealised gains and losses on investmants are disclosed in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Reaiisad profits or iosses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference batwaen the fair vaiue of the
consideration received less any directly attributable costs, on the saie of equity and the repayment of loans and
receivables, and its carrying valus at the start of tha accounting period, converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at tha date of disposal.

Unrealised profits or logses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of investmants
between the start and end of the accounting period converted into surcs using the exchange rates in force at the
reporting date.

Forsign exchange on investments arises on investmenis mads in currencies that are different from the functional
currency of the Partnership. Investments are transiated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Al sach subsequent reporting date invastments are translated to suros at the exchange rate ruling at that date.

F Revenue recagnition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is mostly investment income

Portfolic income is income from loans that is recognised as it accruas by refarence to principal outstanding and
effective interast applicable and dividends from squity investments are recognised in the Statemant of
comprehensive income when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

G Operating expenses All operating expsnses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H General Partner’s priosity profit share The General Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share,
as a first charge on amounts available for aliocatien amang Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit
share is treated as an expenss in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis
as it is a contraciual cbligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short terrn deposits held at call with financial institutions with original maturities of three menths
or less that are readily convertible tc known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it,

K Caplial contributlons and loan account Partnars have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and lean amaounts are
racognised when a notice is issued.

L Recelvables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment losses based on the amounts which the Manager considers to be receivable in respect of
goods or sarvices rendered up to the Statement of financial position date.

M Payables Liabilitios, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounis which the Manager considers to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the
Statement of financial position date.

N Carrled Interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entited to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will raceive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Pariner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calcuiation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achiaved ang distribution arrangements met were the
investments realised at their fair values. An accrual is made equal to the Founder Pariner's share of profits in
excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect the likely actual cash paymeant date, which may be
matarially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carrled interest results from a
decrease in carriad interast due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

LP11420

2017 2016
4 €
Intarest income 1,923,666 6,249,689
Dividend ingome 187,745 4,742 572
2,111,411 10,992,261
2 Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments

Unquoted 207
Quoted Invesiments Investmants Total
€ L  {

Movement in the fair value of
invesiments (65,005) 495,926,922 495.861,917
(65,005) 495,926,922 495,861,917
Unquoted 2016
Quoted Invesiments Investments Total
L | L €

Movemant in the fair vaius of
investments 254,622 293,713,049 293,957,671
254 622 293,713,049 293,967,671

16
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3 Realised profit on the disposal of investments
Unquoted 2017
Quoted Investments Investments Total
< € €
Proceeds from inveatments 10,825,576 205,485,177 216,310,752
Opaning tair value ot disposed
investrents {10,464,465) (201,787,263) (212,251,728}
361,110 3,697,914 4,059,024
Unquoted 2016
Quoted Investments investments Total
L € €
Proceeads from invastments 15,425,413 260,135,513 275,660,926
Opening fair value of dispossd
investments (16,331,348} (234,688,500) {251,020,248)
(905,935) 25,446,613 24,540,678
4 Operating expenses
2017 2016
€ €
Audit fea 10,543 11,487
Tax compliance 172,254 411,345
Bank charges 1,441 6,085
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 17,986 110,773
Portfolio company related costs 262,858 110,268
Fund administration 45,188 37,856
AIFMD depository 98,202 86,159
Fund reporting 11,884 20,964
620,356 794,837
5 Investments
Quoted Unquoted
investiments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2016 10,529,470 905,899,632 916,429,102
Additions during the year - 12,723,399 12,723,399
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (10,464 465) (201,782,412) (212,246,877)
Fair value gain . 489,901,997 489,901,997
Foreign exchange-movements {65,005) (3,041,454) (3,106,459)

Fair value at 31 March 2017 -

1,203,701,162

1,203,701,162

The fair value of unquoted invastments comprises equity of €1,008,256,571 (2016: €645,119,490) and loans of

€195,444 591 (2016: €260,780,142).

17
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5 Investments (continued)

Included within additions during the year were €9,550,167 (2016: €16,770,713) of capitalised interest and accrued
interest, ot which €7,098,675 (2016: €6,424,926) was valued at nil, which is reflected as a reduction in the fair value
gain.

The holding period of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investmants are classifiad as non-current, It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hlerarchy

The Parinership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial instruments

Levei 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that No Levei 2 financial instruments
ara observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly ’
(i.0. derivad from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market data  Unquoted equity instruments and loan
instruments

Unguoted equity instruments and loan instruments are measured at fair value in accordance with the IPEV valuation
guidelines with refersnce 1o the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement. Loans and
equity are valued togather to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are in the same
investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To amive at the
fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated. The value is
then distributed armongat the differsnt loan, aquity and other financial instruments accordingly.

The Partnership’s investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

< L § L 4 €

Quoted investmeants - - - .
Unquoted investmenty - - 1,203,701,162 1,203,701,162
- - 1,203,701,162 1,203,701,162

2016 2016 2016 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 10,529,470 - - 10,529,470
Unguoted investments - - 905,899,632 905,899,632
Total 10,529,470 - 805,899,632 916,429,102

As at 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments. As at 2016, the Partnership did not
hoki any Level 2 investments.
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5 Investments (continued)

Invastments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that thay are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy autharised above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate leval at the baginning of the relevant financial reporting period.

Levei 3 fair value reconciiiation

2017 2016

€ €

Cpening book value 905,899,632 845,562,082
Additions 12,723,399 16,846,423
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (201,782,412) {237,946,087)
Fair value movemant 489,301,997 283,855,459
Foreign exchange {3,041,454) {2,418,246)
Closing fair value 1,203,701,162 905,899,632

All net realised and unrealised gains in the tables above are reflectsd in the accompanying Statement of
comprehensive income. Net amount of €500,944.405 (2016: €313,153,662) relates to those investmants held by
the Partnarship during the year and at 31 March 2017 and is reflected within unrealised profit on the revaluation of
investments and realised profit on the disposal of investments, in the Staterment of comprehensive income.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting poficy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2017 and classified as Level 3, 78.56% were valued using a multiple of
earnings and the remaining 21.44% were valued using an alternative methodology.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation techniques

Valustion muitiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings-based valuation. The multipie is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction muttiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors incfuding liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 15.78x (2016: 13.03x). If the multiple used to value each unquoted investment
valued on an eamings multiple basis as at 31 March 2017 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investrnent portfolio
would be a decrease of €66.30 millian (2016: €50.01 million} or 7.01% {2016:7.34%). If the multiple increased by
5% then the impact on the investment portfalio would be an increase of €66.31 million (2016: €49.94 million) or
7.01% (2016: 7.33%).

Alternative valuation methodologies

There are a number of aiternative investment vafuation methodologies used by the Partnership, for reasons specific
to individual assets. By vaiue and at year end the following techniques were used: 99.83% DCF and 0.17% other,
If tha value of ali ot the invastments under this methodology maved by 5%, this would have an impact on the
investment partfolio of €12.90 million (2016: €11.2 million) or 3% (2016: 4.01%).
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6 Receivables

2017 2016
€ €
Tax credits awaiting distributions - 417,722
Other raceivables - 4,843
- 422,565
7 Payables
2017 2016
€ L 4
Accrued sxpensas 213,850 289,510
Other liability 134,554 -
348,404 289,510
8 Carried interest payable
2017 2016
€ €
Opening carried interast payable ' 42,648,175 -
Carried interost expanse recognised in the Statement of
comprehansive income during the year 171,327,025 42,648,175
213,975,200 42,648,175
Of which: payabie is greater than 1 year 213,975,200 42,648,175

Carried interast payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likaly cash payment date, which may
bs materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €236,945,631 (2016: €50,794,659).

9 Taxation

No provision for taxation has bean made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive incoma.

10 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the parformance of underlying investmants.

The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk is regularly managed by the General
Partner.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The Partnership's managemant of price risk, which arises primarily from quoted and unquoted equity instruments,
is through the careful consideration of the investmant, asset management and divestment decisions by the General
Partner.

A 15% change in the fair value of those investmants would have the following direct impact on the Statement of
comprehensive income:

Quoted
Investmants Unquoted investments Total
< € €
At 31 March 2017 - 180,555,174 180,555,174
At 31 March 2016 1,579,421 135,884,945 137,464,366

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is dua to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2017, the
Partnership was exposad to currency risk relating to EUR/SEK, EUR/GBP and EUR/USD. At 31 March 2017, had
EUR strengthened / weakenad by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held
constant, net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown
in the following lable.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2017 L 4 < €
uUso 14,764 28,188 40,441
SEK 1,331,521 2,541,996 3,647,211
GBP 1,743 3,328 4,774

1,348,029 2,573,509 3,692,427
As at 31 March 2016 € € €
usDh 1,116 2,131 3,057
SEK 2,579,337 4,924,189 7,065,141
GBP 1,184,083 2,260,484 3,243,303

3,764,516 7,186,804 10,311,501

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Parthership's exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Parinership's total assets were
€1,221,177,277 (2018: €919,550,403) and the total liabilities (including acerual for carried interest) were
€214,323,604 (2016: €42,937,685).

% of total Partitership assels 2017 2016
SEK 2.3% 5.9%
GBP - 2.7%
2.3% 8.6%

% of total Partnership liabilities 2017 2016
GBP 3.0% 0.2%
uso 38.0%. 0.3%
41.0% 0.5%

59.0% (2016: 99.5%) of tha Partnership's liabilities were denominated in euros.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in six portfalic investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnarship may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-tood discount retail industry and thus the Partnership’s performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party wilf be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

At the Partnership level, the maximum exposure to cradit risk, in the event that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at period end (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets}, is the carrying amount of
those assets as indicatad in the Statement of financial position. Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes
in sconamic, industry or geographic factors similarly affect the Partnership’s counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposurs is significant in relation to the Partnership's tota! credit exposurs. Cradit risk in relation to the debt element
of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of the valuation process described in note 5.
The credit quality of loans and recsivablas within the investment portfolic is based on the financial performance of
the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due it is beliaved that the risk of default is
small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolic company has failed or is expected to fail in the next
12 months, the increase in credit risk s included within the ovarall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the Partnership’s underlying investment lavel, transactions will be enterad into concurrently with diverse
creditworthy counterparties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds ta be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk managemant approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expensas and invastments through capital calls from Partners. As at 31 March 2017, the
Partnership has undrawn commitments of €43,259,300 (2016: €47,943,921) which is callable by the Manager in
accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2017,
the Partnership held €1,203,701,162 (2016: €905,899,632) in investments that it considered to be ifliquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meset outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

The following table analyses the Parinership's undrawn commitments and assets into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the Statement of financial position date.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Assets
Undrawn Assels lsss Dbetwesn Assets more
As st 31 March 2017 commiiments than 1 year 1-5 years than S years Total
4 L ¢ € £ €
Urdrawn commitments
and total assets 43,259,300 17,476,065 1,203,701,162 - 1,264,436,527
43,259,300 17,476,065 1,203,701,162 - 1,264,438,527
As at 31 March 2018
Undrawn commitmants
and total assets 47,943,921 13,650,771 905,899,632 - 967,494,324
47,943,921 13,650,771 905,899,632 - 967,494 324

The following table analysas the Partnership's liabilities into relevant rmaturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial pasition date

Liabilities Lisbilities Liabilities
fess than 1 beiween more than §
As at 31 March 2017 yoar 1-5 ysars yoars Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 348,404 - - 348,404
348,404 - - 348,404
As at 31 March 2018
Other payables and accrued expenses - 289,510 - 289,510
- 289,510 - 289,510

Carried intarast payable greater than one year of €213,975,200 (2016: €42,648,175) has no stated maturity as
carried interest results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the timing
of when the investments will be sold. The Parinership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant diract exposure to intarest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans. indirect axposure to interest rate risk is via portfolio companies and is included in market price
risk.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €1,006,853,623 (2015: €875,612,718) at the raporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Parinership. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Pariner
may request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Pariners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnarship’s objectives, policies or processas for the managament of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2017, :
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11 Related parties

During the year the Partnarship entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of ralated party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of tha Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2017 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017 are set out in note 8.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the invesiment period, the General
Partner is sntitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry dats, the priority profit share is reduced to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment pariod expiry date, raduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanantly written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly ownad subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2017 2016
Staternent of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 4,263,967 4,651,732
Statement of financial position
Accrusd at the snd of the year - -

Management, administrative and secrstarial arrangements

Duting the ysar a number of costs wers recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with tha LPA.

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive Income € €
Recharged costs 332,151 375,450

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makaes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal 10 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio income 1,380,199 5,964,471
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments 496,438,710 300,389,577
Realised profit/{loss) on the disposal of investments 6,715,921 (76,563)
Statement of financial position
Ungucted investmeants 1,203,268,204 844,820,802
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12 Related undertakings

LP11420

The Comparnies Act 2006 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings
and this is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant
holdings. in this context, significant means a sharghoiding greater than or equal to 20% of the nomina! vaiue of any

clags of shares.
The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2017 are listed below.
Associatss

" Country of

Dascription Holding / share class Address incorporation :;?:I:‘ym
or residence
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  26.69% of Ordinary shares 9 Rue Ste Zithe Luxembourg  Luxembourg :;’:;?gge\;ghi de
) Rue Sainte Zithe 9 Invesiment
Memora SA 30.33% of Ordinary shares Luxembourg, Luxembourg Luxembourg Holding Vehicie
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd,
OneMed AB 32.33% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden e rahicle
33 Swedan g
Perenmarkt 15 \nvestment
Peer Holding 1 B.V.  22.12% of Ordinary shares  Zwaagdijk East, 1681PG Netherlands Holding Vehicle
Netherlands g
Scandferrias . 35 Great St Helen's, London, Investment
Holding UK Ltd 26.11% of Ordinary shares |y 04 Kingdom, EC3A BAP U Holding Vehicle
Parc des Erables - Bat 1, 66
Echezeaux . - ' Invastment
Investissements SA 25.76% of Ordinary shares gtaed:: Sartrouville, Le Pecq  France Halding Vehicie

The Partnership has no intarasts in any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

13 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlfing party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc {the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Va LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deals across all regions
in which 3i Group plc (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2017 2016

€ €

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year before 448,198,870 280,813,640
carried interest expense

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 293,431,364 242,292,251

Net assets attributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132

Total attributable to Partners 1,102,774,315 830,507,521

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gain on the value of the remaining investments of €447,372,842, strong asset cash flows
derived from portfolio income of €1,466,773 and proceeds on realisation of €195,336,791. The Partnership also
distributed €180,158,310 to its Partners.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership's risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

*  Market price risk

e  Currency risk

« Concentration risk

*  Credit risk

»  Liquidity risk

+ Interest rate risk

+  Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’'s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim ta limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership fevel. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note
10.

For and on behalff of 3i invastments plc

Authorised signatory
291 June 2017

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWIHE SJD
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Manager’s report

The Directors of the Manager present their Manager’s report on the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Parinership is 3i EFV GP Limited.

The Manager submits its report with the financial statements of the Partnership for the year to 31 March 2017.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deals.across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnarship is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.
Partners’ interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and ragulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitments to draw down from Partners
and sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Partnership can continue to operate for the foreseeable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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Manager’s report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager confirms that: (a) sc far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is
unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itseif aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Ernst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA”) and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2008.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

]

thorised signatory
2™ June 2017

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SWI1E 54D
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' Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The members have appointed the Manager to prepare the financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager's report, Strategic report and financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and reguiations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™ as adopted by the European Union (*EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required 10:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the members to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicabie to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

independent auditor’s report to the members of 3i Europartners Va LP

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Va LP for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Pariners’ accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 1 to 13. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Reguiations
2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the qualifying partnership’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitited by law, we dc not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership's
mambers, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have farmed.

Respective responsibilities of members and auditor

As explained more fully in the Members' responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Qur
rasponsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and freland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free frorn material misstaternent, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the qualitying
partnership's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the members; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual report and accounts to identify material
incongistencies with the audited financial statements and te identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent materiai misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the impiications
for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and ot its
profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by The Parinerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied fo qualifying
partnerships by The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the Strategic report and the Manager's report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic report and the Manager's report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Auditor’s report
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the Strategic report or Manager's report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

s certain disclosures of members’ remuneratior spacified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Efuff A KJ(/Mf LLp

Maximilianc Bark (Senijor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

2 8 June 2017
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11419

Notes 2017 2016
€ €
Portfolio income 1 1,904,813 9,915,944
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments 2 447,372,842 265,201,813
Realised profit on the disposal of invastments 3 3,703,196 22,138,174
Foreign exchange on investments - 12,946
Gross investment return 452,980,851 297,268,877
Priority profit share {3,846,749) (4,196,585)
Operating expenses 4 (423,775) (388,851)
Net interest expense {(40,944) {11,709)
Exchange movements (121,906) {80,356)
Withholding tax expense {348,607) (11,777,736)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the
year before carried interest expense 448.198.870 280 813.640
Carried interest expense 8 (154,767,506) (38,521,389)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the
year 293,431,364 242,292,251

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2017
Capital Loan Profit and loss
Contributions account account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,316 220,654,814 571,330,002 791,986,132
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,226,234 - 4,226,234
Distributions to Partnars - (180,158,310) - (180,158,310)
1,316 44722738 571,330,002 616,054,056
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 293,431,364 293,431,364
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,316 44,722,738 864,761,366 909,485,420
for the year ended 31 March 2016
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
£ € € €
Opening balance ot
Partners’ accounts 1,316 459,184,946 329,037,751 788,224,013
Drawdowns from Partners - 1,460,755 - 1,460,755
Distributions to Partners - (239,990,887) - (239,990,887)
1,316 220,654,814 329,037,751 549,693,881
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 242 292,251 242,292 251
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,316 220,654,814 571,330,002 791,986,132

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017
Notes 2017 2016
Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 5
- Quoted investments - 9,499,174
- Unquoted investments 1,085,924,030 817,258,614
Total non-currant assets 1,085,924,030 826,757,788
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,024,178 3,462,589
Receivables 6 - 381,225
Total current assets 17,024,178 3,843,814
Total assets 1,102,948,208 830,601,602
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interast payable 8 (193.288,895) (38,521,389)
Total non-current liabilities (193,288,895) (38,521,389)
Current liabilities .
Payables 7 {173,893) {94,081}
Total current liabilities (173,893) (94,081)
Total liabilities {193,462,788) (38,615,470)
Net assets attributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132
Represented by:
Capital contributions 1,316 1,316
Loan account 44 722 738 220,654,814
Profit and loss accounts 864,761,366 571,330,002
Net assets attributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132
Carried interest ailocation 193,288,895 38,521,389
Total attributable to Partners 1,102,774,315 830,507,521

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

The financial statements have been approved and autherised for issue by the Manager.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Authorised signatory
2% - June 2017

11
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11419

2017 2016
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments (2,862,729} (68,301)
Proceeds from investments 195,336,791 236,728,558
Portfolic income received 1,466,773 8,814,528
Bank interest received 10,755 13,491
Bank interest charged (51,699) (25,200}
Priority profit share (3,846,749) (4,196,585)
Operating expenses (466,729) (345,422)
Net cash flow from operating activities 189,586,413 240,921,069
Cash flow from financing activities
Capital contribution from Partners - 263
Drawdowns 4,226,233 1,460,755
Distributions (180,158,310} {239,990,887)
Net cash flow from financing activities (175,932,077) (238,529,869)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 13,654,336 2,391,200
Opening cash and cash equivalents 3,462,589 1,121,678
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (92,747) (50,289)
Cash and cash squivalenis at the end of the
year 17,024,178 3,462,589

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership {Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after

IAS7 Disclosure initiative (amendments to 1AS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows) 1 January 2017
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 186 | eases 1 January 2019

The impact of future standards and amendments on the financial statements is being assessed by the Manager.
The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 will have a material impact on its resuits.

B  Basis of preparation The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are
presented in suros, the functional currency of the Partriership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital
commitments, drawdowns and distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assurmnptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for astimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair vafuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodology for investments and carried interest are disclosed in accounting policies E and
N,

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreigh currency transactions are
tranglated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive income.

E Investments Investments are reé:ogm’sed and de-recognised on a date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment. The
Partnership manages its investments with a view to profiting from the receipt of investment income and capital
appreciation from changes in the fair value of equity investments.

All investments are initially recognised at the fair value of the gonsideration given and held at this value until it is
appropriate to measure fair value on a different basis, applying the internaticnal Private Equity and Venture Capital
{“IPEV”) valuation guidelines.

Quoted investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and subsequently carried in the Statement
of financial position at fair value. Fair value is measured using the closing bid price at the reporting date where the
investmeant is quoted on an active stock market.
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments (continued)

Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are
subsequently carried in the Statement of financial position at fair value. Fair value is measured using IPEV valuation
guidelines.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as pan of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Parinership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value.

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on investments are disclosed in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value of the
consideration received less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity and the repayment of loans and
receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period, converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the date of disposal.

Unrealised profits or losses on the revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of investments
betwean the start and end of the accounting period converted into euros using the exchange rates in force at the
reporting date.

Foreign exchange on investments arises on investments made in currencies that are different from the functional
currency of the Partnership. Investments are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
At sach subsaquent reporting date investmants are translated to euros at the exchange rate ruling at that date.

F Revenue recagnition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is mostly investment income.

Portfolio income is income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to principal outstanding and
effective interest applicabie and dividends from equity investments are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H General Partner’s priority profit share The General Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share,
as a first charge on amounts available for allocation among Parthers, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit
share is treated as an expense in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis
as it is a contractual obligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

i Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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Accounting policies (continued)

J  Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when the Manager approves it.

K Capltal contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
repraesented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a notice is issued.

L. Receivables Assels, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date io determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash flows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considerad to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest n accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
Genaeral Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
investments realised at their fair values. An accrual is made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in
excess of the performance conditions, discounted 1o reflect the likely actual cash payment date, which may be
materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest results from a
decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

LP11419

2017 2016
€ €
Interest income 1,735,439 5,637,427
Dividend income 169,374 4,278,517
1,904,813 9,915,944
2 Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments

Unquoted 2017
Quoied Investmeants Investments Total
€ € €

Movement in the fair value of
investments (58,645) 447,431,487 447 372,842
(58,645) 447,431,487 447 372,842
Unquoted 2016
Quoted Investments Invastments Total
L € €

Movement in the fair value of
investments 229,708 264,972,105 265,201,813
229,708 264,972,105 265,201,813

16



3i Europartners Va LP

3 Realised profit on the disposal of investments

LP11419

Unquoted 2017
Quoted Investments Investments Total
€ 13 €
Proceeds from investments 9,766,308 185,448,343 195,214,651

Opening fair value of disposed
investments (9,440,529) (182,670,827} (191,511,456)
325,779 3,377,416 3,703,196
Unquoted 2016
Quoted Investments Investments Tolal
€ € €
Proceeds fram investmaents 13,916,654 234,678,701 248,535,755

OCpening fair value of disposed
investments (14,733,344) (211,724,237) (226,457,581)
(817,290) 22,955,462 22,138,174

4 Operating expenses
2017 2016
€ €
Audit fees 10,543 11,487
Bank charges 781 6,453
Fund administration 34,560 34,422
Tax compliance 9,155 34,216
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 23,551 98,934
Portfolio company related costs 233,481 86,437
AIFMD depository 98,202 86,159
Fund reporting 13,502 30,743
423,775 388,851
5 Investments
Quoted Unquoted

investents investments Total
€ € €
Fair vaiue at 1 Aprif 2016 9,499,174 817,258,614 826,757,788
Additions during the year - 11,517,179 11,517,179
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (9,440,529) (182,066,550) (191,507,079)
Fair value gain - 441,932,151 441,932,151
Foreign exchange movements (58,645) (2,717.,364) (2,776,009)

Fair value at 31 March 2017

1,085,924,030

1,085,924,030

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises eguity of €909,599,296 (2016: €581,995,132) and loans of

€176,324,735 {2016: €235,263,482).

17



3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

5 [Investments (continued)

Included within additions during the year were €8,654,450 (2016: €15,130,633) of capitalised interest and accrued
interest, of which €6,441,744 (2016: €5,793,770) was valued at nil, which is reflected as a reduction in the fair vaiue
gain.

The holding period of the Partnership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments
Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets Ne Level 1 financial instruments
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that No Level 2 financial instruments

are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 [nputs that are not based on observable market data  Unquoted equity instruments and loan
instruments

Unquoted equity instruments and loan instruments are measured at fair value in accordance with the IPEV valuation
guidelines with reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement. Loans and
equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are in the same
investment and are invested and disposed of at the sama time, and cannot be traded separately. To arrive at the
fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated. The value is
then distributed amongst the different ioan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

The Parinership's investments in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2017 2017 2017 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

4 € € €

Quoted investments - - - -
Unquoted investments - - 1,085,924,030 1,085,924,030
- - 1,085,924,030 1,085,924,030

2016 2016 2016 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Quoted investments 9,499,174 - - 9,499,174
Unguoted investments - - 817,258,614 817,258,614
Total 9,499,174 - 817,258,614 826,757,788

As at 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments. As at 2016, the Partnership did not
hold any Level 2 investments.

investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy authorised above. When an investment’s characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period.
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5 Investments (continued)

Level 3 tair value reconciliation

2017 2016

€ €

Opening book value 817,258,614 762,825,923
Additions 11,517,179 15,198,934
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (182,066,550) (214,662,711}
Fair value movement 441,932,151 256,083,474
Foreign exchange {2,717,364) (2,187.005)
Closing fair value 1,085,924,030 817,258,614

All net realised and unrealised gains in the tables above are reflected in the accompanying Statement of
comprehensive income. Net amount of €451,076,038 (2016: €287,927,567) relates to those investments held by
the Partnership during the year and at 31 March 2017 and is refiected within Unrealised profit on the revaluation
of investments and Realised profit on the disposal of investments, in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive 10 assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2017 and classified as Level 3, 78.56% were valued using a multiple of
earnings and the remaining 21.44% were valued using an alternative methodology.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 15.78x (2016: 13.03x). if the multiple used to value each unquoted investment
vaiued on an eamings multipfe basis as at 31 March 2017 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio
would be a decrease of €59.81 million (2016: €45.11 million) or 7.01% (2016:7.34% if the multiple increased by
5% then the impact on the investment portiolio would be an increase of €59.82 million (2016 €45.06 million) or
7.01% (2016: 7.33%).

Alternative valuation methodologies

There are a number of alternative investment valuation methodologies used by the Partnership, for reasons specific
to individual assets. By value and at year end the following techniques were used: 99.83% DCF and 0.17% other.
If the value of all of the investments under this methodology moved by 5%, this would have an impact on the
investment portfolio of €11.64 million (2016: €10.14 million) or 5% (2016: 4.01%).

6 Receivables

2017 2016

€ €

Tax credits awaiting distributions - 376,848
Cther receivables - 4,377
- 381,225
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7 Payables
2017 2016
€ €
Accrued expenses 51,753 94,081
Other liability 122,140 -
173,893 84,081
8 Carried interest payable
2017 2016
€ €
QOpening carried interest payable 38,521,389 -
Carried mtergst beense repognlsed in the Statement of 154,767,506 38,521,389
comprahensive income during the year
193,288,895 38,521,389
Ot which: payable is greater than 1 year 193,288,895 38,521,389

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to refiect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €214,038,633 (2016: €45,879,590).

9 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

10 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.

The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market
conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market risk is reguiarly managed by the General
Partner.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from quoted and unquoted equity instruments,
is through the carefu] consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the General
Partner,

A 15% change in the fair value of those investments would have the following direct impact on the Statement of
comprehensive income:

Quoted
investments Unquoted investments Total
€ € €
At 31 March 2017 - 162,888,605 162,888,605
At 31 March 2016 1,424,876 122,588,792 124,013,668
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2017, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD, EUR/GBP, EUR/SEK. At 31 March 2017, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2017 € € €
usD 18,830 35,948 51,577
GBp 1,599 3,052 4,379
SEK 1,201,436 2,293,651 3,290,891
1,221,865 2,332,651 3,346,847

As at 31 March 201§ € € €
usD 5,235 9,994 14,339
GBP 1,067,848 2,038,620 2,924,976
SEK 2,326,950 4,442 360 6,373,821
3,400,033 6,490,974 9,313,136

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership's exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard 1o the Parinership’s assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s iotal asseis were
€1,102,948,208 (2016: €830,601,602) and the total liabilities (including accrual for carried interest) were
€193,462,788 (2016: €38,615,470).

% of total Partnership asseis 2017 2016
GBP - 2.7%
SEK 2.3% 5.9%

2.3% 8.6%
% of total Partnership liabilities 2017 2016
GBP 6.1% 0.1%

6.1% 0.1%

93.9% (2016: 99.9%) of the Partnership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversity risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolic.

The Partnership participates in six portfclio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate retum of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Parinership's performance will
be closely linked to the perfarmance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Al the Partnership level, the maximum exposure to credit risk, in the event that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at period end (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets), is the carrying amount of
those assets as indicated in the Statement of financial position. Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes
in economic, industry or geographic factors similarly affect the Partnership’s counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Partnership’s total credit exposure. Credit risk in relation to the debt element
of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of the valuation process described in note 5.
The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolio is based on the financial performance of
the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due it is believed that the risk of default is
small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolio company has failed or is expected to fail in the next
12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the Partnership's underlying investment level, transactions will be entered into concurrently with diverse
creditworthy counterparties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

The Parinership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners. As at 31 March 2017, the
Partnership has undrawn commitments of €39,026,315 (2016: €43,252,548) which is callable by the Manager in
accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’s investments are subjact to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 3t March 2017,
the Partnership held €1,085,924,030 (2016: €817,258,614) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

The following table analyses the Partnership’s undrawn commitments and assets into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the Statement of financial position date.

Assets more
Assets than
Undrawn Assels less between
As at 31 March 2017 commitmants than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
€ € € € €
Undrawn commitments
and total assets 39,026,315 17024178 1,085,924,030 - 1,141,974,524
39,026,315 17,024,178  1,085,924,030 - 1,141,974,524
As at 31 March 2016
Undrawn commitments
and total asseis 43,252 548 13,342,988 817,258,614 - 873,854,150
43,252,548 13,342,988 817,258,614 - 873,854,150
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The following table analyses the Partnership's liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than §
As at 31 March 2017 year 1-5 years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 173,893 - - 173,893
173,893 - - 173,893

As at 31 March 2016

_Other payables and accrued expenses - 94,081 - 94,081
- 94,081 - 94,08t

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €193,288,895 (2016: €38,521,389) has no stated maturity as
catried interest rasults from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with certainty the timing
of when the invastments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans. Indirect exposure to interest rate risk is via portfolio companies and is included in market price
risk.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €909 485,420 (2016: €791,986,132) at the reporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner
may request additional contributions from the Pariners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Parthers on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership’s objsctives, policies or processes for the management of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

11 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.

Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the petformance
of the Pattnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2017 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 20617 are set out in note 8.

23



3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

11 Related parties (continued)

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees refated fo the
Partnership’s activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is reduced to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

The General Pariner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 3,846,749 4,196,585

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i pic, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA.

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive incoms € €
Recharge costs 314,865 254,110

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating palicies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio income 1,245,148 5,380,364
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments 447,864,945 270,680,317
Realised profit/(loss) on the disposal of investments 6,128,150 (69.071)
Statement of financial position
Unguoted investments 1,085,533,438 753,378,057
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12 Related undertakings

LP11419

The Companies Act 2006 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings
and this is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant
holdings. In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than ar equal to 20% of the nominal value of any

class of shares.

The Partnership's related undertakings at 31 March 2017 are listed below.

Assccistes
Country of
Description Holding / share class Address incorporation :;lt?‘::lltp al
or residence ¥
Investment
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  24.08% of Crdinary shares 9 Rue Ste Zithe Luxembourg  Luxembourg Holding
Vehicle
. . Investment
o ) Rue Sainte Zithe 9 ;
Memora SA 27.36% of Ordinary shares Luxembourg, Luxembourg Luxembourg Holqmg
Vehicle
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd, Investment
OnehMed AB 29.16% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden Holding
33 Sweden Vehicle
Perenmarkt 15 Investment
Peer Holding 1 B.V.  20.85% of Ordinary shares = Zwaagdijk East, 1681PG Netherlands Holding
Netherlands Vehicle
. Investment
Scandferries : 35 Great St Helen's, London, .
Holding UK Ltd 23.56% of Ordinary shares | a4 Kingdom, EC3A 6AP UK Holdira
Echezeaux Parc des Erables - Bat 1, 66 Investment
. 23.24% of Ordinary shares  Rte de Sartrouville, Le Pecq  France Holding
Investissements SA Cedex Vehicle

The Partnership has no interests in any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

13 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlfing party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments pic (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Va LP {the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. .

Results and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deals across all regions
in which 3i Group ple (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2017 2016
€ €
Profit and Total comprehensive incoms for the year before 448,198,870 280,813,540
carried interest expense
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year 293,431,364 242,292,;'!51
Net assats atiributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132
Total attributable to Pariners 1,102, 774315 830,507,521

The resuits for the year and financial position of the Partnaership are as shown in the annaxed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are gatisfiad with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by unrealised gain on the value of the remaining investments of €447,372,842, strong asset cash flows
derived from portfolio income of €1,466,773 and proceeds on realisation of €195,336,791. The Partnership also
distributed €180,158,310 to its Partners.

Future developments

The Managear does not forasee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager avaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a reguiar basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnerghip are considered to be the tfollowing:

Market price risk
Currancy risk
Concentration risk
Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Interest rate risk
Capital management
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Strategic report

The Manager has sstablished a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from svents that hinder the achievement of the Parinership’s performance objectives, being to
generate aftractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim o limit undue counterparty exposure, ansure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Parnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note
10.

For and on hehaif of 3i Investments plc

Authorised signatory
27 June 2017

Registered office;
16 Palace Streat
London

SW1E SJD
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Manager’s report
The Directors of the Manager prasent their Manager's report on the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Background and general information

The Parinership was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registarad office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Pariner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Limited.

The Manager submits its report with the financial statements of the Partnership for the year to 31 March 2017.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Ragulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buyout deals.across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnarship is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circurmstances.

The Manager does not foreses any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term,
Partners’ interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 10.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Parinership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concem

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient undrawn commitrnents to draw down from Partners
and sufficiant cash resources tc ensure that the Parinership can continue to operate for the forasesable future and
for at least 12 months. For this reason, it continues to prapare the finrancial statements on a going cohcern basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There wera no material svents subsequant to the balance sheet date.



3i Evropartners Va LP LP11419

Manager’s report

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is
unaware; and (b} it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make |tself aware of any relevant audit information
and {0 establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement {(“LIPA") and chapter 2, saction 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i Investmants plc

crised signatory
23 ™ June 2017

Registered office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E SJD
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The members havs appointed the Manager to prepare the financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Manager's report, Strategic report and financial slatements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepars the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS™) as adopted by the Eurcpean Union (“EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgaments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial stateaments on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate ta presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the membaers.

The Manager is responsibie for keaping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the members to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Marager is aiso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnerships and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confims that they have complied
with the above requiremants in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of 3| Europartners Va LP

Wae have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Va LP for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
comprise the Stalement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Staterment
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 1 to 13. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companias Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations
2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the gualifying partnership’s members those
maltars we are raquired to state to them in an auditor's repon and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the qualitying partnership’s
members, as a body, for our audit work, tor this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of members and auditor

As axplainad more fully in the Membars’ respansibilitias staternent set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statemants

An audit involves oblaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assassmaent of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the qualifying
partnership's circumstances and have basn consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the members; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual report and accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and tc identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. if we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
tor our report.

Opinion on financial statements
in our opinion the financia! statements:

* give a frue and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's aftairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

» have baen proparly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Gompanies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnarships by The Partnerships {Accounts) Reguiations 2008.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companiss Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
pantnerships by The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations

In aur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic report and the Manager’s report for the financial year for which the
finarcial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial stataments; and

* the Strategic report and the Manager's repart have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
raquirements.
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Auditor's report
Matters on which we are required to report by excsption

in fight of the knowtedge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the Strategic report or Manager's report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnarships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accourting records have not besn kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been

received from branchas not visited by us; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

= certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received ali the information and axplanations we require for our audit.

Erurf A Kivuf LLp

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
1or and on behait of Emat & Young LLP, Statutary Auditor

London
2 8 June 2017
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes 2017 2016
€ €
Portfolio income 1 1,904,813 9,915,944
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments 2 447,372,842 265,201,813
Realised profit on the disposal of investments 3 3,703,196 22,138,174
Foreign exchange on investments . 12,946
Gross investment retum 452,980,851 297,268,877
Priority profit share {3,846,749) (4,196,585)
Operating sxpenses 4 {423,775} (388,851)
Net interest expense (40,944) (11,709)
Exchange movements {121,906} (80,356)
Withhoiding tax expense {348,607) (11,777,736)
Profit and Total comprehensive incoms for the
year before carried interest sxpense 448,198 870 280,813,640
Carrisd interest expense 8 (154,767 ,506) (38,521,389)
Profit and Total comprehensive income for the
yeoar 293,431,364 242,292,251

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or
discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11419

Capital Loan  Profit and loss
Contributions account account Total
€ 4 € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,316 220,654,814 571,330,002 791,886,132
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,226,234 4,226,234
Distributions to Partners - (180,158,310) - (180,158,310)
+,316 44 722,738 571,330,002 616,054,056
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 293,431,364 293,431,364
Closing balance ¢f Pariners’
sccounis 1,316 44,722,738 864,761,366 909,485,420
tor the year ended 31 March 2016
Capital Profit and
Contributions Loan account loss account Total
L § 4 L 4 €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,316 459,184,946 329,037,751 788,224,013
Drawdowns from Partners - 1,480,755 - 1,460,755
Distributions to Partners - (239,990,887) - {239,990,887)
1,316 220,654,814 329,037,751 549,693,881
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 242,292,251 242,292 251
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,318 220,654,814 571,330,002 791,986,132

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes an pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10



3i Europarinars Va LP LPt1419
Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017
2017 2016
Assets € ¢
Non-current assets
Investments
- Quoted investments - 9,499,174
- Unquoted investments 1,085,924,030 817,258,614
Tota! non~current assets 1,085,924,030 826,757,788
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,024,178 3,462,589
Receivables - 381,225
Total current assets 17,024,178 3,843 814
Total assets 1,102,948,208 830,601,602
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable (193,288,895) {38,521,389)
Total non-current lisbilities {193,288,895) (38,521,389)
Current liabllities
Payables {173,893) {94,081)
Total eurrent liabilities (173,893) {94,081)
Total liabllities (193,462,788) (38,615,470)
Net assets attributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132
Represented by:
Capital contributions 1,316 1,316
Loan account 44,722,738 220,654,814
Profit and loss accounts 864,761,366 571,330,002
Net assets attributable to Partners 909,485,420 791,986,132
Carried interest allocation 193,288,895 38,521,389
Total attributable to Partners 1,102,774,315 830,507,521

The accounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Tha financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager,

Far and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Authorised signatory
2 37 June 2017
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2017

LP11419

2017 2016
€ €
Cash tiow trom operating activities
Purchase of investments {2,862,729) {68,301)
Proceesds from investments 195,338,791 236,728,558
Portfolio income received 1,466,773 8,814,528
Bank interest received 10,755 13,491
Bank interest charged (51,699) (25,200)
Priority profit share (3,848,749} (4,196,585)
Onerating expenses (466,729) (345,422)
Net cash flow from opersting activities 189,586,413 240,921,069
Cash flow from financing activities
Capital contribution from Partners - 263
Drawdowns 4,226,233 1,460,755
Distributions (180,158,310) (239,990,887)
Net cash flow from financing activities (175,932,077) {238,529,869)
Change in cash and cesh aquivalents 13,654,336 2,391,200
Opening cash and cash equivalsnts 3,462,589 1,121,678
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (92,747) (50,289)
Cash and cash squivalants at the end of the
year 17,024,178 3,462,589

The aceounting policies on pages 13 to 15 and the notes on pages 16 to 25 form an integral part of thess financial

statemants.

12
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Accounting policies

A Statement ot compllance These financial statements have besn prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commangcing on or after the following dates:

Effective for pericds beginning on or after

IAS 7 Disclosure initiative (amandmants to IAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows) 1 January 2017
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2018
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with custormers 1 January 2018
IFRS 18 teases 1 January 2019

The impact of future standards and amendments on the financial statements is being assessed by the Manager.
The Manager does not anticipate that IFRS g, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 will have a material impact on its results.

B Basls of preparation The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis and are
presentad in euros, the functional currency of the Paririership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital
commitments, drawdowns and distributions are denominated.

C Signiticant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and sxpenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Tha estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions ta accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The mast significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodology for investments and carried interest are disclosed in accounting palicies E and
N.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
sirategic objectives of investing in portfolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating retums in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Forsign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the ciosing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the average rates of exchange over the year and exchange differences arising are taken
to the Statement of comprehensive incoms.

E Investments Invesiments are rei:ognised and de-recognised on a date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investiment. The
Partnership manages its investments with a view to profiting from the receupt of investment income and capital
appreciation from changes in the fair value of equity investments,

All investments are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration given and held at this value until it is
appropriate to measure fair value on a diffarent basis, applying the International Private Equity and Venture Capital
(1PEV") valuation guidelines.

Quoted investments are designated at fair value through profit and loss and subsequently carried in the Statement
of financial position at fair valua. Fair value is measured using the closing bid price at the reporting date where the
invesiment is quoted on an active stock market. .

13
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Accounting policies (continued)
E Investments (continued)

Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are designated at fair value through profit and loss and are
subsequently carried in the Statement of financial position at fair vaiue. Fair value is mgasured using IPEV valuation
guidelines.

interest-bearing loans accrue intergst which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
a3 part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going farward. "Capitalisation at nil value® is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an equal reduction
in portfolio value.

Realigsed and unrealised gains and losses on investments are disclosed in the Statement of comprehsnsive income.

Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value of the
congideration received less any directly attributable costs, on the saie of equity and the repayment of loans and
raceivables, and its carrying valus at tha start of the accounting period, converted into euros using the exchange
rates in force at the date of disposal.

Unrealised profits or losses on tha revaluation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of investments
between the start and and of the accounting period convartad into euros using the exchange rates in force at the
raporting date.

Foreign exchange on investmernts arises on investments made in currencies that are different from the functional
currency of the Partnership. Investments are transiated at the exchangs rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
A1 each subsequent reporting date investments are transiated to euros at the exchange rate ruling at that date.

F  Revenue recognition The rsvenue recognised by the Partnership is mostly investment income.

Portfolio incoma is income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by raference to principal outstanding and
sffective interest applicable angd dividends from equity investmants are recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income when the sharehoiders' rights to receive payment have been established.

G Operating sxpenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H General Partner’s priority profit share The General Partner is entited to receive a priority profit share,
ag a first charge on amounts available for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority profit
share is treated as an expense in the Statament ot comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis
as it is a contractual obligation with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financial institutions with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Managar. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is raecognised in the yaar whean the Manager approves it.

K Capltal contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a notice is issued.

L Recelvables Assets, other than those specificaliy accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. They are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whather there is any indication
of impairment. if any such indications exist, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected
discounted future cash flows and any changes in the level of impairment is recognised directly in the Statement of
camprehensive income.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on tha amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N  Carrled Interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitied to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will raceive its share of the profits after the performance
conditians describad in tha LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for ail Partners, including the
General Partiner, has besn repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have baen achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
investments realised at their fair values. An accrual is made equal to the Founder Partnar’s share of profits in
excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect the kkely actual cash payment date, which may be
materially later than the time of the accruat.

An increase in the carried interast due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried interest expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest results from a
decrease in carriad interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

15
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

LP11419

2017 2016
[ § €
Interest income 1,735,439 5,637,427
Dividend income 169,374 4278517
1,904,813 9,915,944
2 Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments

Unquoted 2017
Quoted Investments Investments Total
€ L § €

Movement in the fair value of
investments (58,645) 447 431,487 447372 842
(58,645) 447.431,487 447 372 842
Unquoted 2016
Quoted Investments Investments Total
q € 4

Movement in the fair value of
investments 229,708 264,972 105 265,201,813
229,708 264,972,105 265,201,813

16
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3 Realised profit on the disposal of investments

LPt1419

Unquotad 2017
Quoted Investments Investments Total
€ € €
Proceeds from investments 9,766,308 185,448,343 195,214,651

Opening fair vatue of disposed
investments (9,440,529) - (182,070,927) (191,511,456)
325,779 3,377,416 3,703,196
Unquoted 2016
Quoted investments invesiments Totat
€ £ €
Proceeds from investments 13,916,054 234,679,701 248,595,755

Qpening fair valua of disposed
investments (14,733,344) (211,724,237) (226,457,581)
{817,290) 22,955,462 22,138,174

4 Operating expenses
2017 2016
€ €
Audit feas 10,543 11,487
Bank charges 781 6,453
Fund administration 34,560 34,422
Tax compliance 9,155 34,216
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 23,551 98,934
Portfolio company related costs 233,481 86,437
AIFMD depository 98,202 86,159
Fund regorting 13,502 36,743
423,775 388,851
5 Investments
Quoted Unquoted

invesiments investments Total
€ € €
Fair value at 1 April 2016 9,499,174 817,258,614 826,757,788
Additions during the year - 11,517,179 11,517,179
Disposals, repayments and writa-offs (9,440,529) {182,066,550) {191,507,079)
Fair value gain - 441,932 151 441,932,151
Foreign exchange movements (58,845) (2,717,364) (2,776,009)
Fair vaiue at 3t March 2017 - 1,085,924,030 1,085,924,030

The fair value of unquoted investmants comprises equity of €909,599,296 (2016: €581,995,132) and loans of

€176,324,735 (2016: €235,263,482).

17
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5 Investments (continued)

Included within additions during the year were €8,654,450 (2016: €15,130,633) of capitalised interest and accrued
interest, of which €6,441,744 (2016: €5,793,770) was valued at nil, which is reflected as a reduction in the fair value
gain,

The holding period of the Partnarship's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are clasaitied as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investmants that will be sold
within one year.

Falr value hisrarchy
The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hisrarchy:

Levet Falr vaiue Input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (Uunadjusted) from active markets

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that No Level 2 financial instruments
are obssrvable aither diractly (i.e. as prices) or indirectiy
(i.e. derived from prices)

No Level 1 financial instruments

Level 3 inputs that are not based on oirservable market data  Unquoted equity instruments and loan
instrurments

Unquoted equity instruments and loan ingtruments are measured at fair value in accordance with the IPEV valuation
guidelines with referance to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement. Loans and
equity are valued togather to derive tha fair vaiue of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are in the same
investrment and are investad and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To amive at the
fair value of the unguoted squity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated. The value is
then distributed amongst the diffarent loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

The Partnership's investmants in equity instruments and loan instruments are classified by the fair value hiararchy

as follows:
2017 2017 2017 2017
Level t Leval 2 Level 3 Total
L { L € €
Quoted investments - - - -
Unquotsd investments - . 1,085,924,030 1,085,924,030
- - 1,085,924,030 1,085,924,030
2016 2016 2016 2016
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
Quoted investments 9,499,174 - - 9,499,174
Unquoted invasimants - - 817,258,614 817,258,614
Total 9,499,174 - 817,258,614 828,757,788

As at 2017, the Partnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments, As at 2016, the Partnership did not
hold any Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at sach year end to ensure that they are correctly classitied between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy autnorised above. When an investment’s characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the critaria of a given level, they are transfarred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period.
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5 Investments (continued)

Level 3 fair value reconclilation

2017 2016

L 4 €

Opening book value 817,258,614 762,825,923
Additions 11,517,179 15,198,934
Disposals, repayments and write-offs {182,066,550) {214,8662,711)
Fair value movement : 441,932,151 256,083,474
Foreign exchange (2,717,364) {2,187,005)
Cloging fair value 1,085,924,030 817,258,614

All net realised and unrealised gains in the tables above are reflected in the accompanying Statement of
comprehansive income. Net amount of €451,076,038 (2016: €287,927,567) relates to those investments held by
the Partnership during the year and at 31 March 2017 and is reflected within Unrealised profit on the revaluation
of investments and Realised profit on the disposal of investments, in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting palicy
E. Of invesiments heid at 31 March 2017 and classified as Lavel 3, 78.56% were valued using a muitiple of
eamings and the remaining 21.44% were valued using an alternative mathodology.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position,

Valustion techniques

Vaiuation multiple

The valuation multipie is the main assumption applied in a muktiple of earnings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same Industry and, whera possible, with a similar business mode! and profile are selected and then adjusted
tor tactors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value waighted average muitiple
used when valuing the porifolio was 15.78x (2016; 13.03x). lf the multiple used to value each unguoted investment
valued on an eamings multiple basis as at 31 March 2017 decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio
would be a decrease of €59.81 million {2016: €45.11 million) or 7.01% (2016:7.34%) If the multiple increased by
5% then the impact on the investment portfalia would be an increase of €59.82 miilion (2016: €45.06 milion) or
7.01% (2016: 7.33%).

Alternative valuation methodologies

There are a number of altemative investment valuation methodologies used by the Partnership, for reasons specific
to individual assets. By value and at year end the following tachriques were used: 93.83% DCF and 0.17% other.
If the vaiue of all of the investments undar this methodology moved by 5%, this would have an impact on the
investmant portfolio of €11.64 miflion (2016: €10.14 million) or 5% (2016 4.01%).

6 Receivables

2017 2016

4 €

Tax credits awaiting distributions - 376,848
Other receivables - 4,377
- 381,225
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7 Payables
2017 2016
€ €
Accrued sxpenaes 51,753 94,081
Other liability 122,140 -
173,893 94,081
8 Carried interest payable
2017 2015
€ €
Opening carried intersst payabls 38,521,389 -
Carried interest axpense recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive Income during the ysar 154,767,506 38,521,389
193,288,895 38,521,389
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 193,288,895 38,521,389

Carried interest payabie at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflsct the likely cash paymaent date, which may
be materially latsr than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payabls ware not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €£214,038,633 (2016: €45,879,590).

9 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no lability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnaership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

10 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, cancentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk.

Market price risk
Markat risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.
The Parinership’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market

conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership's market risk is regularly managed by the General
Partner.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arisas primarily from quoted and unquoted equity instruments,
is through the careful consideration of the Investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the General
Partner.

A 15% change in the fair value of those investments would have the following direct impact on the Statement of
comprehensive income:

Quotad
investments  Unquoted Investments Total
€ € €
At 31 March 2017 - 162,888,605 162,888,605
At 31 March 2016 1,424,876 122,588,792 124,013,668
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

LP11419

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2017, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/USD, EUR/GBP, EUR/SEK. At 31 March 2017, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variabies held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the

following table.

5% 10% 15%

As gt 31 March 2017 € € €
usb 18,830 35,948 51,577
GBP 1,599 3,052 4,379
SEK 1,201,436 2,293,651 3,290,801
1,221,865 2,332,651 3,346,847

As at 31 March 2016 € [ €
usD 5,235 9,994 14,339
GepP 1,067,848 2,038,620 2,924,976
SEK 2,326,850 4,442 360 6,373,821
3,400,033 6,490,974 9,313,136

In addition to this, the table below sats out the Partnership's axposure 1o foreign currency axchange rates with
regard to the Partnership’s assels and liabilities at the year end. The Parinership's total assets were
€1,102,948,208 (2016: €830,601,602) and the total liabilities (including accrual for carried interest) were

€193,462,788 (2016: €38,615,470).

* of total Partnezship assets 2017 2016
GBP - 2.7%
SEK 2.3% 5.9%

2.3% 8.6%
% of totai Parinership liabllities 2017 2016
GBP 6.1% 0.1%

6.1% 0.1%

93.9% (2016: 99.9%) of the Parinership’s liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks tc diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector

and size as well as through the maturity praofile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in six portfolio investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest investment.
This investment is congentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Partnership's perforrmance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse

davelopments affecting this industry.
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Cradit risk

Cradit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or undarlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

At the Partnership level, the maximum exposure to credit risk, in the event that counterparties fail to perform their
obligations as at period and (in relation to each class of recognised financial assets), is the carrying amount of
those assets as indicated in the Statement of financial position. Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes
in aconomic, industry or geographic factors similarly affect the Partnership's counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Partnership’s total credit exposure. Credit risk in relation to the debt element
of the Partnership’s invastments is considered and monitored as part of the valuation process described in notg 5.
The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investment portfolio is based on the financial performance of
the individual portfolio companies. For those assets that are not past due it is believed that the risk of default is
small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions of the Partnership's investment. Wheare the portfolio company has faited or is expected to fail in the next
12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within tha overall assessment of the fair value of the investment.

Al the Partnership's underlying investment lavel, transactions will be entered into concurrently with diverse
ereditworthy counterparties, theraby mitigating any significant concentration of cradit risk.

At the balance shest date, there ars no balances which were past due or impairad.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk managemaent approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners. As at 31 March 2017, the
Partnership has undrawn commitments of €39,026,315 (2016: €43,252,548) which is callable by the Manager in
accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2017,
the Partnership held €1,085,924,030 (2016: €817,258,614) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficiant funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

The following table analyses the Partnarship's undrawn commitments and assets intorelevant maturity groupings
based on the ramaining period at the Statement of financial position date.

Assas Aot Tors
Undrawn Assets less between
As at 31 March 2017 commitments than 1 ysar 1-5 years 5 years Total
[ 4 € € € €
Undrawn commitments
and total assets 39,026,315 17,024,178 1,085,924,030 - 1,141,974 524
39,026,315 17,024,178  1,085,924,030 - 1,141,974 524
As at 31 March 2016
Undrawn commitments
and total assets 43,252,548 13,342,988 817,258,614 - 873,854,150
43,252,548 13,342,988 817,258,614 - 873,854,150
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10 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

The following table analyses the Partnership's liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period al the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Liablilties Liabilities Liabilitles

(ess than 1 between more than §
As at 31 March 2017 yoar 1-5 years yaars Total
¢ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 173,893 - - 173,893
173,893 - - 173,893

As at 31 March 2018

Cther payabies and accrued expensas - 84,081 - 894,081
- 94,081 - 94,081

Carriad interest payable greater than one year of €193,288,895 (2016 €38,521,389) has no stated maturity as
carried interest results from investment related trangactions and it is not possible to identity with certainty the timing
of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into relevant maturity
groupings.

interest rate risk

Tha Partnership has no significant direct exposure to intarest rate risk as its investments in debit instruments are in
fixed rate loans. Indirect exposure to interest rate risk is via portfolio companies and is included in market price
risk.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considerad to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
accounts, which totalled €909,485,420 (2016; €791,986,132) at the reporting date. There are no externally
impased capitai requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner
may request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Parmers on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership's abjectives, policies or processes for the management of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

11 Related parties

During the ysar the Parinership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed below.
Carried interest

The Partnership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of tha Partnership are met. The amounls recognised in the Statement of comprehensive incote for the year ended
31 March 2017 and in the Statemant of financial position as at 31 March 2017 are sel oul in note 8.
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11 Related parties {(continued)

QGeneral Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. Aftar the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is reduced to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realisad or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period. ‘

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsibie for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 3,846,749 4,196,585
Statement of financial postition
Accruad at the snd cf the year - -

Management, administrallve and secretarial arrangsments

During the ysar a number of costs were recharged bestween the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA.

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive Income ¢ |
Recharge costs 314,865 254,110

Statement of financial poaition
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the aquity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investmenis where the Partnership has significant influence but not contrel arg as follows:

2017 2016
Statement of comprehensive income 1 €
Portfolio income 1,245,148 5,380,364
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of iInvestmeants 447 864,945 270,680,317
Realised profit/(loss) on the disposal of investments 6,128,150 (69.071)
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 1,085,533,438 753,378,057
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12 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership's related undertakings
and this is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant
holdings. In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal ta 20% of the nominal value of any
class of shares.

The Partnership's relatad undertakings at 31 March 2017 are listed below.

Associstes
Country of
Description Holding / share class Addrass incorporation :;'t'l':'"';"
or residence
Invastment
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  24.08% of Ordinary shares 9 Rue Ste Zithe Luxambourg  Luxembourg Holding
Vehicle
. Investment
Rue Sainta Zithe 9 -
Memora SA 27.36% of Ordinary shares | - o hon rg, Luxembourg Luxembourg cg:::ligg
Svardvagen 3B, Danderyd, Investrment
OneMed AB 29.16% of Ordinary shares 182 Sweden Holding
33 Sweden Vehicle
Parsnmarkt 15 Investment
Paer Holding 1 B.V.  20.85% of Ordinary shares  Zwaagdijk East, 1681PG Netherands Holding
Netherlands Vehicle
. Investmant
Scandferries " 35 Great St Helen's, London, "
Holding UK Lid 23.56% of Ordinary shares . uaq Kingdom, EC3AGAP UK Holding
Echezeaux ;arcddeéa Erables' -Bat1,66 Investment
- 23.24% of Ordinary shares te de Sartrouville, Le Pecq  France Holding
Investissements SA Cedex Vehicle

The Partnership has no interests in any subsidiaries or joint ventures,

13 Controlling party

The Partnarship has no ultimate controfiing party.
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